
2/24/2022; Page 1 of 3 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, February 28, 2022 
5:30 p.m. Regular Meeting 

Clovis Point Elementary School 

Due to current restrictions on public gatherings and in support of public safety, Eastmont’s 
Board of Directors’ Meeting on Monday, February 28, 2022 will have limited in-person public 
attendance. These seats are available on a first come, first serve basis with doors open at 5:15 
pm. However, this meeting will be broadcast online with participation available via Webex at:   
https://eastmont206.webex.com/eastmont206/j.php?MTID=m63b61b38b78a61b72523fa3248cb071b 

• When requested, the password is: Eastmont
• If this link does not connect, please check the website for an updated Webex link.

The Eastmont School District is governed by a board of five directors.  The Eastmont Board of Directors sets the direction of 
the District by establishing goals, objectives, and policies to guide the superintendent who supervises all programs and staff. 
The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that the Eastmont School District is adequately financed to meet those goals, 
objectives, and policies; for monitoring the progress of the District; and for evaluating the performance of the superintendent. 
Each board member is a fiduciary for the District and, as such is responsible for using his or her best judgment in conducting 
the affairs of the District. 
The Board generally meets at 5:30 p.m. on the second and fourth Monday of each month at either a school site or the 
Administration Office Board Room at 800 Eastmont Avenue, East Wenatchee. On holidays, or when a conflict occurs, a meeting 
may be held at an alternate time and/or date with proper notification given to the media.   
The complete 2021-22 Board Meeting Schedule is available at www.eastmont206.org under the School Board tab. 

 NOTICE is hereby given that the Eastmont School District No. 206 Board of Directors, 
Douglas County, Washington will hold a virtual regular meeting on Monday, February 28, 2022 
beginning at 5:30 p.m. for the purpose of considering and acting upon the following agenda 
items: 

I. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

II. APPROVE AGENDA/MODIFICATIONS

III. PUBLIC COMMENT
Comments critical of personnel, students, or volunteers will not be read given privacy concerns.
Instead, they will be referred to the Superintendent for further inquiry and possible action.
Comments are limited to 3 minutes per person and 10 minutes per topic.

Public comments will also be accepted starting at about 5:32 by calling (509) 888-4698. Written
comments may also be sent by regular mail to Eastmont School District or emailed to
schoolboard@eastmont206.org  For online participation, chat comments and Question & Answer
will not be enabled during the meeting.

https://eastmont206.webex.com/eastmont206/j.php?MTID=m63b61b38b78a61b72523fa3248cb071b
http://www.eastmont206.org/
mailto:schoolboard@eastmont206.org


   

2/24/2022; Page 2 of 3 

 
 
 

IV. INFORMATION 
A. Staff Years of Service Recognition — Meaghan Vibbert, Board Member 

• Matt Davis had 20 years in August 2020  
• Runelle Davis had 20 years in August 2020 
• Amy Pefferman had 20 years in August 2020 
• Sue Zornes had 20 years in August 2021 
• Renee Jaeger had 25 years in August 2021 
• Jeannette Webb had 25 years in August 2021 

B. Board News 
• 2022-25 Superintendent Contract for Dr. Becky Berg – Action is anticipated. 

C. Superintendent News 
• COVID Update 

 
V. BUILDING AND PROGRAM REPORT 

A. Clovis Point Elementary School Recognition — Meaghan Vibbert, Board Member 
B. Clovis Point Elementary School Building Report — Amy Dorey, Principal 
 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA 
(All items on the Consent Agenda have been distributed to all board members for study and are 
considered routine. ALL items appearing in this section are adopted by one single motion, unless a 
member of the board or the superintendent requests that an item be removed and voted on separately.) 

A. Approval of the minutes from the regular meetings held on the following dates: 
1. January 24, 2022 (Meeting with Lee Elementary School Staff) 
2. February 7, 2022 (Meeting to select candidates to interview) 
3. February 15 & 17, 2022 (Meeting for preliminary interviews) 
4. February 22 & 23, 2022 (Meeting with two finalists) 

B. Approval of the payment of the bills and/or payroll dated February 28, 2022. 
C. Approval of the Personnel Action Items and Out-of-Endorsement Waiver Requests 

dated February 28, 2022. 
D. Approval of the Request for Staff Travel dated February 28, 2022. 
E. Approval of the following surplus requests: 

1. Eastmont Technology Department items. 
2. Eastmont Transportation Department items. 

F. Approval of the following field trip requests: 
1. Eastmont FBLA field trip request. 
2. Eastmont Music Department field trip request. 

G. Approval of the School Improvement Plan for Clovis Point Elementary School. 
H. Approval of a donation from the Lisson family. 
I. Approval of the Rate Increase for Wee Wildcat/Wee Cougars Preschools for 2022-23. 
J. Review of the Monthly Budget Status Update. 
K. Review of the Monthly Student Enrollment Update. 
 



   

2/24/2022; Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 
 

VII. REPORTS 
A. Special Education Services Report — Sarah Lewman, Director of Special Education 
B. School District Property Report — Garn Christensen, Superintendent 

 
VIII. ACTION ITEM 

A. Cancel Monday, March 7, 2022 Board Meeting 
 
IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board will hold an executive session for the purpose of the sale or purchase of real 
estate. The executive session is anticipated to last 15 minutes, but the Board Chair will 
announce the anticipated return time, which may be extended if necessary by an 
announcement by the Chair, at the scheduled return time.  No action is anticipated after 
the Executive Session. 

 
X. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  FUTURE TOPICS – Identified by the Board for further review. 
1) Training for Board Members in PLC 
2) Updated Information on the Distribution of LAP and Title funds 

 
  UPCOMING MEETINGS – Until further notice, all future Eastmont Board of Directors Meetings 
will be hybrid meetings with limited in-person capacity.     

 

 March 14  Site Visit at Eastmont High School & Regular Meeting at 5:30 p.m. 
 March 28  Regular Meeting (Select Supt. Candidates) at Eastmont Administration Office at 5:30 p.m. 
 

 
 



Clovis Point Intermediate – School Board Recognition 2021-2022 
 

1.  

 
Clovis staff built a brand-new elementary school from the ground up – bringing staff from different 
buildings – aligning to a vision, supporting each other, stocking the library with new books, changing 
signage, furniture and classrooms, moving curriculum, etc...  

 

2.  

 
Clovis’s number one goal this year is relationships – to build a school where staff are happy to come 
to work, students are happy to come to learn, and a place where parents are happy to send their 
precious children to each day!  Staff are proud of what has been built in a few short months during a 
pandemic. 

 

3.  

 
Staff focused on Response To Intervention (RTI) this year and are working hard to fill the holes that 
COVID has left our students with by building in a 50-minute intervention time for grades K-5 where a 
team of up to 12 certified adults divide and focus on specific skills that the students need. It is 
working – kids are growing!!!  

 

4.  Clovis has a long list of activities for staff and students to develop culture! 

 



Clovis Point Elementary Report for 2021-22 
 

2/28/2022; Report prepared by Principal Amy Dorey 

FTE=Full-time Equivalent; F & R=Free & Reduced; H=Hispanic; ELL=English Language Learners; M=Migrant; Sp Ed=Special Education; A=Students with <2 Absences Per Month; 
MB=Mobility, HL=Homeless, D=Discipline Rate, (Exclusion rates are the % of the (D) disciplined, E1=Exclusion of <=1 day; E2=2-3 days; E4=4-5 days; E6=6-10 days; E10=>10 days.  

Student Demographics and Information (School % / State %) from Prior Years Staff Information from Prior Years 
Year FTE F & R H ELL M SpEd A MB HL D E1 E2 E4 E6 E10 FTE Cert Para Office Maint Adm 

2016-17 619 66/48 56/23 23/11 18/2 13/14 85/83 3/2 3/3 5/4 24/25 45/33 21/16 0/15 10/12 59.5 36.5 14 4 3 2 
2017-18 644 66/47 55/24 20/12 15/2 12/15 85/83 1/2 1/3 7/4 29/26 31/33 28/16 8/14 4/12 58.5 37.5 12 4 3 2 
2018-19 701 67/47 54/24 16/12 15/2 14/15 90/83 2/2 3/3 8/4 16/28 40/32 13/15 16/14 15/12 58.5 37.5 12 4 3 2 
2019-20 704 68/46 54/24 15/12 14/2 12/15 89/83 3/2 1/3 5/3 31/27 53/34 3/15 6/13 8/11 63 41 13 4 3 2 
2020-21 668 65/45 59/25 15/12 14/2 11/14 94/89 3/2 2/2 NA NA NA NA NA NA 63 38.5 16 3 3 2.5 

 
Budget using prior year numbers:  $95,366+ prior year end balance of $33,004 – expenditures of $70,621 = year-end balance of $57,749.  
 
Overall School Improvement Scores (Prior 3 years)  Data is up to 2018-19, which was the last complete State testing cycle prior to COVID.  

                             

 

 
District or Building Goal & Supporting Strategy/Activity Progress/Data 

Being a new school with mostly new staff - we have focused this year on 
Relationships. Relationships with each other, our students and our families. We 
talk about relationships being the foundation that is needed to create a 
positive/safe culture and build our school’s reputation. 

100% of our staff feel welcome and respected at school.  This is 
how you begin to build a positive school.  This is a daily focus for 
our staff! 

Response to Intervention is our focus this year. We have created a huge team 
that has blended funding so they are able to serve our students with what they 
need when they need it and with the most qualified teacher. We have built a 
schedule with a 50-minute intervention block into our schedule for all grades      
K-5.  With having 200 6th graders, this was not possible – we are fitting them in 
on Mondays and during the non-PE specialist times. 

Our intervention team meets on a regular basis to look at progress 
monitoring data. We also meet 4 times per year with each grade 
level to talk about student progress and re-group as needed. ALL 
students are a part of this progress (GenEd, IEP, EL). Within the 
intervention time, our classroom teachers are able to provide 
extensions for students who are meeting standards. 

 



   

Draft Minutes for 1/24/22;  Page 1 of 5 

DRAFT 

 
 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

January 24, 2022 
 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
The regular meeting of the Eastmont School District Board of Directors was called to order  
by Board President Whitney Smith at 5:30 p.m. in the Eastmont Administration Office Board 
Room at 800 Eastmont Avenue, East Wenatchee.   
 
Along with limited seating that followed safety protocols for first come first serve in-person 
attendance for the public, a Webex link was provided on the District’s website for public 
participation at:   
https://eastmont206.webex.com/eastmont206/j.php?MTID=m5a7e195e2f6de5c9d476e2694cb26d95 
 
ATTENDANCE 
Present: 

Whitney Smith, Board President  
Cindy Wright, Board Vice President 
Joy Dawe, Board Director 
Meaghan Vibbert, Board Director 
Garn Christensen, Board Secretary/Superintendent 
Brandy Fields, Superintendent’s Secretary  

 
Participating Remotely: 

Jason Heinz, Board Director 
District staff presenting, community members, and two media personnel 

 
APPROVE AGENDA/MODIFICATIONS 
Superintendent Garn Christensen reported there were no changes to the Agenda. 
 
MOVED by Director Wright and SECONDED by Director Vibbert to approve the Agenda for 
January 24, 2022 as presented.  The motion CARRIED unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Instructions for public comment were provided on the Agenda.  Public Comments could be 
made to the Board in three ways: 1) By calling (509) 888-4698; 2) By writing and sending 
regular mail to the Administration Office; and 3) By email to schoolboard@eastmont206.org.  
There was no public comment. 
 

https://eastmont206.webex.com/eastmont206/j.php?MTID=m5a7e195e2f6de5c9d476e2694cb26d95
mailto:schoolboard@eastmont206.org


   

Draft Minutes for 1/24/22;  Page 2 of 5 

DRAFT 
 
 
INFORMATION 
A. Staff Years of Service Recognition. 

The Board recognized the following staff: 
• Erin Cornehl had 20 years in August 2020 
• Angie Schmitten had 25 years in August 2020 
• Pary Kenck had 30 years in August 2020 
• Andrea Duncan had 30 years in August 2020 
• Tracey Thompson had 25 years in August 2021 
• Jeff White had 25 years in August 2021 

 
 

B. Board News. 
None at this time. 
 

C. Superintendent News. 
Superintendent Christensen updated the Board that he is meeting almost daily with the 
health district and regional ESD personnel regarding availability of testing kits and the 
testing requirements are changing rapidly. 

 
BUILDING AND PROGRAM REPORT 
A. Lee Elementary School Staff Recognition. 

Director Vibbert recognized Lee Elementary staff for the following accomplishments: 
1. Lee is using a new phonics based reading program called 95% Phonics Core 

Program in their Tier 1, 2, & 3 instruction. This is the first time they have ever 
used a structured literacy program that is consistent throughout all tiers of 
instruction. This program provides systematic and explicit instruction that 
addresses and prevents reading gaps for all students. 

2. Lee’s Site Council shares and discusses grade level reading, math, (and 
science in 5th grade) data monthly to indicate growth based on identified grade 
level essentials. Their closing question of each meeting is “What have we done 
to improve student learning?”. 

3. Lee’s school counselor and PBIS coordinator work together to identify and 
support students with behavioral challenges which has aided in decreasing the 
number of SWIS (School-wide Information System) referrals. Coupled with a 
strong check and connect program, Lee ensures their most vulnerable students 
feel welcome and safe at school. 

4. Lee has a very active Sunshine Committee and continues to promote a positive 
building climate with high teacher morale by implementing morale boosting 
activities such as You’ve Been “Booed”, Gratitude Board, Turkey Trot 
Scavenger Hunt, Secret Santa, and Hot Chocolate Bar. In a recent survey, 
100% of staff indicated they feel welcome and respected at school. 

 
B. Lee Elementary School Building Report. 

Principal Jamea Connor and Lee Elementary School staff shared information on their 
recent challenges and accomplishments.  They answered questions from the Board.   
 



   

Draft Minutes for 1/24/22;  Page 3 of 5 

DRAFT 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Approval of minutes. The Board of Directors approved the minutes from the hybrid 

regular meeting held on January 10, 2022. 
B. Payment of bills and/or payroll. The Board of Directors approved the following checks, 

direct deposits, or wire transfers listed on check summaries dated January 24, 2022: 
 Warrant Numbers Total Dollar Amount 

7125376-7125377 $4,614.55 
7125378-7125405 $9,935.56 
7125406-7125549 $576,306.23 
7125550-7125551 $1,495.93 
7125552-7125571 
900130287-900131167 

 
$6,356,549.56 

7125572-7125597 $1,142,549.96 
202100039-202100040 $2,103.31 

 
C. Approval of personnel action. The Board of Directors approved the Personnel Action 

Items dated January 24, 2022 as presented. 
D. Approval of travel. The Board of Directors approved the Requests for Staff Travel dated 

January 24, 2022. 
E. Approval of surplus. The Board of Directors approved the following items as surplus: 

1. Eastmont High School Volleyball items. 
2. Eastmont High School Maintenance items. 

F. Approval of school improvement plan. The Board of Directors approved the School 
Improvement Plan for Lee Elementary School. 

G. Approval of donations. The Board of Directors approved the donations from Town 
Toyota and Toyota Corporation. 

H. Approval of calendar. The Board of Directors approved the revised Student Calendar for 
snow days for 2021-22. 

I. Review of budget status update. The Board of Directors received the Monthly Budget 
Status Update. 

 
Item H. Approval of calendar. 
The Board had a question about requesting a waiver from OSPI regarding the 2 days of 
school missed due to the weather on January 6th and 7th.  Superintendent Christensen let 
them know he had heard from the OSPI Superintendent that the closure had to be more 
than 3 days and would take school farther than the 3rd week of June to be approved. 
 
Correction to the Draft Student Calendar submitted in the Board packet referencing 
February 14th, it should have read February 18th as a make-up day. 
 
MOVED by Director Heinz and SECONDED by Director Vibbert to approve Consent Agenda 
Items #A-I with the corrected date on the Student Calendar.  The motion CARRIED 
unanimously. 



   

Draft Minutes for 1/24/22;  Page 4 of 5 

DRAFT 
 
 
REPORTS 
A. District Construction Related Projects Report. 

Director of Maintenance Services Seann Tanner presented the District Construction 
Related Projects Report and answered questions from the Board. 
 

B. Migrant and Bilingual Programs Report. 
Assistant Director State & Federal Programs Mayra Navarro Gomez presented the 
Migrant and Bilingual Programs Report and answered questions from the Board. 
 

C. Learning Assistance Program (LAP) Report. 
Assistant Director State & Federal Programs Mayra Navarro Gomez presented the 
Migrant and Bilingual Programs Report and answered questions from the Board. 
 

D. Title I Report. 
Assistant Director State & Federal Programs Mayra Navarro Gomez presented the 
Migrant and Bilingual Programs Report and answered questions from the Board. 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
At 6:44 p.m. President Smith announced the Board would hold an Executive Session for 
the purpose of reviewing the performance of an employee for 10 minutes.  The 
Executive Session would start at 6:43 p.m. and conclude at 6:53 p.m. 
 
MOVED by Director Wright and SECONDED by Director Vibbert to enter into an Executive 
Session.  The motion CARRIED unanimously.   
 
President Smith announced the executive session ended at 6:53 p.m. and returned to 
the regular meeting.  No action was taken during Executive Session. 
 
DISCUSSION & POSSIBLE ACTION ITEM 
A. Superintendent’s Mid-Year Evaluation for 2021-22. 

The Board expressed appreciation for Superintendent Christensen’s leadership during 
this pandemic and he was given his mid-year evaluation for 2021-22 school year. 

 
MOVED by Director Vibbert and SECONDED by Director Wright to approve the mid-year 
evaluation for 2021-22 for Superintendent Christensen.  The motion CARRIED 
unanimously. 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
A draft schedule for superintendent interviews. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
MOVED by Director Wright and SECONDED by Director Dawe to adjourn the meeting.   
The motion CARRIED unanimously. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:56 p.m. 



   

Draft Minutes for 1/24/22;  Page 5 of 5 

DRAFT 
 
Approval: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Chairperson Date 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Secretary Date 
 
 



   

Draft Minutes for 2/7/22;  Page 1 of 2 

DRAFT 

 
 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

February 7, 2022 
 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
The regular meeting of the Eastmont School District Board of Directors was called to order  
by Board President Whitney Smith at 5:30 p.m. in the Eastmont Administration Office Board 
Room at 800 Eastmont Avenue, East Wenatchee.   
 
Along with limited seating that followed safety protocols for first come first serve in-person 
attendance for the public, a Webex link was provided on the District’s website for public 
participation at:   
https://eastmont206.webex.com/eastmont206/j.php?MTID=m3dcafc4f55cedff84961f724bc927043 
 
ATTENDANCE 
Present: 

Whitney Smith, Board President  
Cindy Wright, Board Vice President 
Joy Dawe, Board Director 
Jason Heinz, Board Director 
Meaghan Vibbert, Board Director 
Garn Christensen, Board Secretary/Superintendent 
Brandy Fields, Superintendent’s Secretary  

 

Northwest Leadership Associates Sergio Hernandez and Bill Jordan 
 
Participating Remotely: 

District staff, community members, and one media personnel 
 
APPROVE AGENDA/MODIFICATIONS 
Superintendent Garn Christensen requested to remove the topic of real estate from the 
Executive Session. 
 
MOVED by Director Wright and SECONDED by Director Dawe to approve the revised 
Agenda for February 7, 2022.  The motion CARRIED unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Instructions for public comment were provided on the Agenda.  Public Comments could be 
made to the Board in three ways: 1) By calling (509) 888-4698; 2) By writing and sending 
regular mail to the Administration Office; and 3) By email to schoolboard@eastmont206.org.  
There was no public comment. 

https://eastmont206.webex.com/eastmont206/j.php?MTID=m3dcafc4f55cedff84961f724bc927043
mailto:schoolboard@eastmont206.org


   

Draft Minutes for 2/7/22;  Page 2 of 2 

DRAFT 
 
INFORMATION 
A. Board News. 

None at this time. 
 

B. Superintendent News. 
Governor Jay Inslee declared last month as School Board Recognition Month. 
Superintendent Christensen presented each Board Director with a token of appreciation 
and thanked them for serving their community and schools.   

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Approval to enter into a contract. The Board of Directors gave approval to enter into a 

contract with Weatherproofing Technologies, Inc. for Eastmont Junior High School roof 
repairs. 

B. Approval of meeting calendar. The Board of Directors approved the revisions to the 
Annual Board Meeting Calendar for 2021-22. 

 
MOVED by Director Vibbert and SECONDED by Director Heinz to approve Consent 
Agenda Items #A & B.  The motion CARRIED unanimously. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
At 5:35 p.m., President Smith announced the Board would hold an Executive Session 
for the purpose of reviewing qualifications of applicants.  The Executive Session would 
last 30 minutes and conclude at 6:05 p.m. 
 
MOVED by Director Wright and SECONDED by Director Heinz to enter into an Executive 
Session.  The motion CARRIED unanimously.   
 
At 6:05 p.m., the Board extended the Executive Session until 6:20 p.m.  At 6:20 p.m. the 
Board extended the Executive Session until 6:40 p.m. 
 
President Smith announced the Executive Session ended at 6:40 p.m. and returned to 
the regular meeting.  No action was taken during Executive Session. 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
None at this time. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
MOVED by Director Vibbert and SECONDED by Director Wright to adjourn the meeting.   
The motion CARRIED unanimously. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:40 p.m. 
 
Approval: 
 
 

___________________________________   
Chairperson Date Secretary Date 



   

Draft Minutes for 2/15 & 2/17/22;  Page 1 of 3 

DRAFT 

 
 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

February 15 & 17, 2022 
 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
On Tuesday, February 15, 2022, the regular meeting of the Eastmont School District Board 
of Directors was called to order by Board President Whitney Smith at 5:30 p.m. in the 
Eastmont Junior High Auditorium at 905 8th Street NE, East Wenatchee.   
 
ATTENDANCE 
Present: 

Whitney Smith, Board President  
Cindy Wright, Board Vice President 
Joy Dawe, Board Director 
Jason Heinz, Board Director 
Meaghan Vibbert, Board Director 
Brandy Fields, Superintendent’s Secretary  

 
Northwest Leadership Associates Sergio Hernandez and Bill Jordan 

 
Also Present: 

District staff and community members 
 
APPROVE AGENDA/MODIFICATIONS 
President Smith reported there were no changes to the Agenda. 
 
MOVED by Director Vibbert and SECONDED by Director Heinz to approve the Agenda for 
February 15 & 17, 2022.  The motion CARRIED unanimously. 
 
OVERVIEW OF INTERVIEW PROCESS WITH LEGAL COUNSEL 
District Legal Counsel Rockie Hansen provided an overview of the superintendent interview 
process and answered questions the Board had. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
At 4:05 p.m., President Smith announced the Board would hold an Executive Session 
for the purpose of reviewing qualifications of applicants for public employment pursuant 
to RCW 42.30.110(g).  She stated the Executive Session would last 2 hours, start at 
4:06, conclude at 6:06 p.m., and no action was anticipated. 
 
 



   

Draft Minutes for 2/15 & 2/17/22;  Page 2 of 3 

DRAFT 
 
 
 
MOVED by Director Vibbert and SECONDED by Director Wright to enter into an Executive 
Session.  The motion CARRIED unanimously.   
 
RECESS 
At 6:06 p.m., the Executive Session ended and President Smith announced the meeting 
would recess until Thursday, February 17th at 4:00 p.m. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
On Thursday, February 17, 2022, the regular meeting of the Eastmont School District Board 
of Directors was called to order by Board President Whitney Smith at 4:00 p.m. in the 
Eastmont Junior High Auditorium at 905 8th Street NE, East Wenatchee.   
 
ATTENDANCE 
Present: 

Whitney Smith, Board President  
Cindy Wright, Board Vice President 
Joy Dawe, Board Director 
Jason Heinz, Board Director 
Meaghan Vibbert, Board Director 
Brandy Fields, Superintendent’s Secretary  

 
Northwest Leadership Associates Sergio Hernandez and Bill Jordan 

 
Also Present: 

District staff and community members 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
At 4:00 p.m., President Smith announced the Board would hold an Executive Session 
for the purpose of reviewing qualifications of applicants for public employment pursuant 
to RCW 42.30.110(g).  She stated the Executive Session would last 2 hours, start at 
4:01, and conclude at 6:01 p.m., and no action was anticipated. 
 
MOVED by Director Wright and SECONDED by Director Vibbert to enter into an Executive 
Session.  The motion CARRIED unanimously.   
 
RECESS 
At 6:01 p.m., the Executive Session ended President Smith announced the meeting would 
recess for a dinner break. 
 
At 6:36 p.m, President Smith announced the Board would hold an Executive Session for the 
purpose of reviewing qualifications of applicants for public employment pursuant to RCW 
42.30.110(g).  She stated the Executive Session would last 30 minutes, start at 6:36 p.m., 
conclude at 7:06 p.m., and action was anticipated following Executive Session. 
 
 



   

Draft Minutes for 2/15 & 2/17/22;  Page 3 of 3 

DRAFT 
 
 
President Smith announced the Executive Session ended at 6:36 p.m. and returned to 
the regular meeting.  No action was taken during Executive Session. 
 
ACTION ITEM – FINALISTS FOR SUPERINTENDENT POSITION 
MOVED by Director Vibbert and SECONDED by Director Wright to invite Dr. Becky Berg 
and Mr. Jerry Pugh back for a final interview next week on February 22 and 23, 2022.  The 
motion CARRIED unanimously.   
 
ACTION ITEM – CANCEL FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 18TH REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
MOVED by Director Vibbert and SECONDED by Director Wright to cancel the regular Board 
Meeting for February 18, 2022.  The motion CARRIED unanimously.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
MOVED by Director Vibbert and SECONDED by Director Dawe to adjourn the meeting.   
The motion CARRIED unanimously. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:19 p.m. 
 
 
Approval: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Chairperson Date 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Secretary Date 
 
 



   

Draft Minutes for 2/23  & 2/24/22;  Page 1 of 3 

DRAFT 

 
 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

February 22 & 23, 2022 
 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
On Tuesday, February 22, 2022 the regular meeting of the Eastmont School District Board of 
Directors was called to order by Board President Whitney Smith at 5:00 p.m. in the Eastmont 
Administration Office, 800 Eastmont Avenue, East Wenatchee.   
 
ATTENDANCE 
Present: 

Whitney Smith, Board President  
Cindy Wright, Board Vice President 
Joy Dawe, Board Director 
Jason Heinz, Board Director 
Meaghan Vibbert, Board Director 
Brandy Fields, Superintendent’s Secretary  

 
Northwest Leadership Associates Sergio Hernandez and Bill Jordan 
Dr. Becky Berg 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
At 5:00 p.m., President Smith announced the Board would hold an Executive Session 
for the purpose of reviewing qualifications of applicants for public employment pursuant 
to RCW 42.30.110(g).  She stated the Executive Session would last 1 hour, start at 
5:01, conclude at 6:01 p.m., and no action was anticipated. 
 
MOVED by Director Vibbert and SECONDED by Director Heinz to enter into an Executive 
Session.  The motion CARRIED unanimously.   
 
RECESS 
At 6:01 p.m., the Executive Session ended and President Smith announced the meeting 
would recess until Wednesday, February 23rd at 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
On Wednesday, February 23, 2022 the regular meeting of the Eastmont School District 
Board of Directors was called to order by Board President Whitney Smith at 5:00 p.m. in the 
Eastmont Administration Office, 800 Eastmont Avenue, East Wenatchee.   
 



   

Draft Minutes for 2/23  & 2/24/22;  Page 2 of 3 

DRAFT 
 
 
 
ATTENDANCE 
Present: 

Whitney Smith, Board President  
Cindy Wright, Board Vice President 
Joy Dawe, Board Director 
Jason Heinz, Board Director 
Meaghan Vibbert, Board Director 
Brandy Fields, Superintendent’s Secretary  

 
Northwest Leadership Associates Sergio Hernandez and Bill Jordan 
Mr. Jerry Pugh 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
At 5:00 p.m., President Smith announced the Board would hold an Executive Session 
for the purpose of reviewing qualifications of applicants for public employment pursuant 
to RCW 42.30.110(g).  She stated the Executive Session would last 1 hour, start at 
5:01, conclude at 6:01 p.m., and no action was anticipated. 
 
MOVED by Director Vibbert and SECONDED by Director Heinz to enter into an Executive 
Session.  The motion CARRIED unanimously.   
 
RECESS 
At 6:01 p.m., the Executive Session ended and President Smith announced the meeting 
would recess to attend the Candidate Community Forum at Eastmont Junior High School.  
No action was taken during Executive Session. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
At 8:17 p.m., President Smith announced the Board would hold an Executive Session 
for the purpose of reviewing qualifications of applicants for public employment pursuant 
to RCW 42.30.110(g).  She stated the Executive Session would last 30 minutes, start at 
8:18 p.m. and conclude at 8:48 p.m. 
 
MOVED by Director Vibbert and SECONDED by Director Wright to enter into an Executive 
Session.  The motion CARRIED unanimously.   
 
MOVED by Director Wright and SECONDED by Director Dawe to extend the Executive 
Session for 15 minutes.  The motion CARRIED unanimously.   
 
MOVED by Director Wright and SECONDED by Director Dawe to extend the Executive 
Session an additional 15 minutes.  The motion CARRIED unanimously.   
 
At 9:18 p.m., the Executive Session was ended and returned to the regular meeting. 
 
 



   

Draft Minutes for 2/23  & 2/24/22;  Page 3 of 3 

DRAFT 
 
 
 
POSSIBLE ACTION ITEM – FINALISTS FOR SUPERINTENDENT POSITION 
MOVED by Director Vibbert and SECONDED by Director Wright to approve a 
Superintendent contract with Dr. Becky Berg pending successful negotiations at the Board 
meeting scheduled for Monday, February 28, 2022.  The motion CARRIED unanimously.   
 
ACTION ITEM – CANCEL FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 25TH REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
MOVED by Director Vibbert and SECONDED by Director Heinz to cancel the regular Board 
Meeting for February 25, 2022.  The motion CARRIED unanimously.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
MOVED by Director Heinz and SECONDED by Director Wright to adjourn the meeting.   
The motion CARRIED unanimously. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:26 p.m. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Chairperson Date 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Secretary Date 
 
 



  Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Kayla Brown, Executive Director of Human Resources 
 
SUBJECT: Personnel Action Items 
 
DATE:  January 28, 2022 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
 
Resignations 
The following people have notified us of their plans to resign for the 21-22 school year: 
Last Name First Name School Position 
Crutchfield Aurora EHS Teacher 
Garcia Adileny EJHS Paraeducator 
Hall Taylor EHS Teacher 
Lehman Stephanie Cascade Teacher 
Ramirez Jaime EHS Coach - 8th soccer 
Stone Ron EHS Head Coach - Basketball girls  
Waters Mike SJHS Coach - 7th softball 
Wedam Shannon Cascade Paraeducator 
White Jeff EJHS Coach - 7&8th assist. track  

 
Retirements 
The following people have notified us of their plans to retire: 
Last Name First Name School Position/Years 
Celebrezze Robert EJHS Assistant Principal/8 yrs 
Frank Brian EHS Custodian/21 yrs 
Friedrichsen Louise EHS ASB/Secretary/10 yrs +3 ½ yrs 
Miller Jake Tech Hardware/Software Tech/14 yrs 
Mooney Jeffrey SJHS Paraeducator/6 yrs 
Riibe Rekayalla Lee Head Custodian/31 yrs 
Tanner Seann District Office Director of Maint/8 yrs 
Telecky Lisa SJHS Custodian/30 years 

 
 
 



  Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
 
New Hires 
The following people have been offered tentative employment for the 21-22 school year: 
Last Name First Name School Position 
Davis Isaiah EHS Gear Up Specialist 
Garalde Josten Clovis Temporary Paraeducator 
Hammond Brenda EHS/Kenroy School Nurse 
Halverson Audrey Grant Temporary Paraeducator 
Rockney Mara Cascade Lifeskills Paraeducator 
Sheldon Alexandra Rock Island Temporary Paraeducator 
Zavala Edith District Office Migrant Recruiter/Support Specialist 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒None ☒Personnel Expenditure 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends approval of the Personnel Action Items listed above. 



  Page 1 of 8 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Kayla Brown, Executive Director of Human Resources 
 
SUBJECT: Out-of-Endorsement Waiver Requests 
 
DATE:  January 24, 2022 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
 
As teachers are moved at trimester throughout the year to meet the needs of our students, 
we submit these updated out of endorsement waiver requests for your approval. 
 

Teacher Kaycie Anderson 
Location Jr. High 
Certificate # 447345J 
Years in District 15 
Current 
Endorsement 

ESL, Bilingual Education, Elementary Education 

Out of 
Endorsement 
Subject 

Spanish for Young Learners, Spanish I 

Grade Level 7-8-9 
Rationale for 
Waiver 

Kaycie has 15 years teaching experience, most recently as an Elementary 
Teacher at Grant.    

Plan of Assistance The district will support Kaycie with training, networking opportunities with her 
peers and tuition reimbursement funds to promote professional development 
activities.   

 

Teacher Michelle Arnold 
Location Jr. High 
Certificate # 497464H 
Years in District 6 
Current 
Endorsement 

Special Education 

Out of 
Endorsement 
Subject 

Geography 



  Page 2 of 8 

Grade Level 8-9 
Rationale for 
Waiver 

Michelle has 6 years teaching experience, most recently as a Special Education 
Teacher at the Jr. High.    

Plan of Assistance The district will support Michelle with training, networking opportunities with 
her peers and tuition reimbursement funds to promote professional 
development activities.   

 

Teacher Patricia Betzing 
Location EHS 
Certificate # 361844D 
Years in District 24 
Current 
Endorsement 

Earth Science, Math 

Out of 
Endorsement 
Subject 

Health and Life Management, Robotics 

Grade Level 10-12 
Rationale for 
Waiver 

Patty has 24 years teaching experience, most recently as a High School Math 
and Science Teacher. 

Plan of Assistance The district will support Patty with training, networking opportunities with her 
peers and tuition reimbursement funds to promote professional development 
activities.   

 

Teacher Shaine Brookover 
Location EHS 
Certificate # 339571B 
Years in District 26 
Current 
Endorsement 

Biology, Chemistry 

Out of Endorsement 
Subject 

Algebra I 

Grade Level 10-12 
Rationale for Waiver Shaine has been teaching in our district for 26 years. 
Plan of Assistance The district will support Shaine with training, networking opportunities with 

his peers and tuition reimbursement to help with the expenses.   
 

Teacher Rebecca Bush 
Location Cascade 
Certificate # 535149R 
Years in District 5 
Current 
Endorsement 

Mid-Level Humanities, English Language Arts 

Out of Endorsement 
Subject 

Bilingual/ESL Program 

Grade Level 5 
Rationale for Waiver Rebecca has been teaching in our district for 5 years. 
Plan of Assistance The district will support Rebecca with training, networking opportunities with 

her peers and tuition reimbursement to help with the expenses.   



  Page 3 of 8 

 

Teacher Don Carroll 
Location Sterling 
Certificate # 323134G 
Years in District 29 
Current 
Endorsement 

Science, Biology 

Out of Endorsement 
Subject 

Math, Algebra I 

Grade Level 7 
Rationale for Waiver Don has been teaching in our district for 29 years. 
Plan of Assistance The district will support Don with training, networking opportunities with his 

peers and tuition reimbursement to help with the expenses.   
 

Teacher Eloina Chavez 
Location Kenroy 
Certificate # 580196D 
Years in District 1 
Current 
Endorsement 

Emergency Substitute Teacher 

Out of 
Endorsement 
Subject 

Life Skills/Special Education  

Grade Level K-3 
Rationale for 
Waiver 

Eloina has been with our district for 1 year.  

Plan of Assistance Eloina is going through her schooling right now to become a Special Education 
Teacher. The district will support Eloina with training, networking opportunities 
with her peers and tuition reimbursement to help with the expenses.   

 

Teacher Gabriel Cline 
Location Eastmont Learning Academy 
Certificate # 528089F 
Years in District 1 
Current 
Endorsement 

Health and Fitness, English Language Arts 

Out of 
Endorsement 
Subject 

Variety of content 

Grade Level 5-8 
Rationale for 
Waiver 

Gabe has been with the district 1 year.  

Plan of 
Assistance 

Gabe is new to our District this school year and was placed in our Learning 
Academy teaching a variety of content. The district will support Gabe with 
training, networking opportunities with his peers and tuition reimbursement to 
help with the expenses.   

 



  Page 4 of 8 

Teacher Justin Connor 
Location Sterling 
Certificate # 554912F 
Years in District 2 
Current 
Endorsement 

CTE Business and Marketing  

Out of 
Endorsement 
Subject 

Computer Technology, Supplemental Math 

Grade Level 6-8 
Rationale for 
Waiver 

Justin has taught in our district for 2 years. 

Plan of 
Assistance 

Justin is fairly new to our district this year as he was a long time substitute in the 
District last year. The district will support Justin with training, networking 
opportunities with his peers and tuition reimbursement to help with the 
expenses.   

 

Teacher David Dewitt 
Location Sterling 
Certificate # 376960A 
Years in District 22 
Current 
Endorsement 

Elementary Education, ESL Supporting, Mid-Level Math 

Out of 
Endorsement 
Subject 

Geometry 

Grade Level 8 
Rationale for 
Waiver 

Dave has taught in our district for 22 years. 

Plan of Assistance Dave has taught in our District for many years and the district will support Dave 
with training, networking opportunities with his peers and tuition 
reimbursement to help with the expenses.   

 

Teacher Jason Erdmann 
Location EHS 
Certificate # 366630B 
Years in District 7 
Current 
Endorsement 

Special Education, Elementary Education 

Out of Endorsement 
Subject 

Algebra I 

Grade Level 10-12 
Rationale for Waiver Jason has taught in our district for 7 years. 
Plan of Assistance The district will support Jason with training, networking opportunities with his 

peers and tuition reimbursement to help with the expenses.   
 

Teacher Robert Gallaher 
Location EHS 



  Page 5 of 8 

Certificate # 402404H 
Years in District 18 
Current Endorsement Social Studies Primary, History Primary 
Out of Endorsement 
Subject 

Language Arts Lab 

Grade Level 10-12 
Rationale for Waiver Bob has been with the district for 18 years. 
Plan of Assistance The district will continue to support Bob with training, networking 

opportunities with her peers and tuition reimbursement.   
 

Teacher Deborah Goins 
Location Jr. High 
Certificate # 456095R 
Years in District 9 
Current 
Endorsement 

Special Education, Elementary Education 

Out of Endorsement 
Subject 

English/Language Arts I 

Grade Level 9 
Rationale for Waiver Deborah has worked for the district for 9 years. 
Plan of Assistance The district will continue to support Deborah with training, networking 

opportunities with her peers and tuition reimbursement.   
 

Teacher Susan Honaas 
Location Clovis 
Certificate # 529771H 
Years in District 5 
Current Endorsement Science, Designated Science: Earth and Space Science 
Out of Endorsement 
Subject 

Social Studies 

Grade Level 6 
Rationale for Waiver Susan has been with the district for 5 years.  
Plan of Assistance The district will continue to support Susan with training, networking 

opportunities with her peers and tuition reimbursement. 
 

Teacher Isabel Howell 
Location Kenroy 
Certificate # 573240R 
Years in District 1 
Current Endorsement Emergency Substitute Teacher 
Out of Endorsement 
Subject 

Life Skills/Special Ed Program 

Grade Level 2-5 
Rationale for Waiver Isabel is a new teacher in our District this year. She is currently finishing 

schooling to become a Special Education Teacher.  
Plan of Assistance The district will continue to support Isabel with training, networking 

opportunities with her peers and tuition reimbursement.   
 



  Page 6 of 8 

Teacher Jeannette James 
Location EHS 
Certificate # 344456R 
Years in District 26 
Current 
Endorsement 

German, English 

Out of Endorsement 
Subject 

Reading 

Grade Level 10-12 
Rationale for Waiver Jeannette has worked for the district for 26 years. 
Plan of Assistance The district will continue to support Jeannette with training, networking 

opportunities with her peers and tuition reimbursement.   
 

Teacher Anna Petty 
Location Sterling 
Certificate # 461664E 
Years in District 12 
Current Endorsement Special Education, Elementary Education 
Out of Endorsement 
Subject 

English as a Second Language, Bilingual/ESL Program 

Grade Level 6-8 
Rationale for Waiver Anna has been with the district for 12 years.   
Plan of Assistance The district will continue to support Anna with training, networking 

opportunities with her peers and tuition reimbursement 
 

Teacher Emily Prieto 
Location Clovis 
Certificate # 563812G 
Years in District 1 
Current Endorsement Elementary Education 
Out of Endorsement 
Subject 

English as a Second Language 

Grade Level 3-6 
Rationale for Waiver Emily has been teaching in our district for 1 year. 
Plan of Assistance The district will support Emily with training, networking opportunities with 

her peers and tuition reimbursement.    
 

Teacher Marisella Santillan 
Location Jr. High 
Certificate # 404096J 
Years in District 4 
Current Endorsement Elementary Education, English as a Second Language, Bilingual Education 
Out of Endorsement 
Subject 

Spanish I, Spanish for Native Speakers 

Grade Level 9 
Rationale for Waiver Marisella has worked in the district for 4 years. 
Plan of Assistance The district will support Marisella with training, networking opportunities 

with her peers and tuition reimbursement.   



  Page 7 of 8 

 

Teacher Ryan Tullar 
Location ALE 
Certificate # 537532D 
Years in District 4 
Current 
Endorsement 

Social Studies 

Out of 
Endorsement 
Subject 

Variety of content 

Grade Level 10-12 
Rationale for 
Waiver 

Ryan has taught in our district for 4 years as an ALE teacher helping students get 
the credits they need to graduate. This year he also supported our Eastmont 
Virtual Academy. 

Plan of Assistance The district will support Ryan with training, networking opportunities with his 
peers and tuition reimbursement. The district will also look into options for 
getting Ryan a substitute certification for teaching out of endorsed areas.    

 

Teacher Alyson Washington 
Location ALE 
Certificate # 334195E 
Years in District 13 
Current 
Endorsement 

Reading, Elementary Education, Early Childhood Education, English As A Second 
Language 

Out of 
Endorsement 
Subject 

Variety of Content 

Grade Level 10-12 
Rationale for 
Waiver 

Alyson has taught in our district for 13 years in our extended day program as 
well as ALE and this past year as a long term Substitute, as she officially retired 
last year. 

Plan of Assistance The district will support Alyson with training, networking opportunities with 
her peers and tuition reimbursement.   

 

Teacher Breanna Zobel 
Location Jr. High 
Certificate # 551973A 
Years in District 4 
Current 
Endorsement 

Special Education, Elementary Education 

Out of Endorsement 
Subject 

Algebra I  

Grade Level 9 
Rationale for Waiver Breanna has 4 years experience in our district. Initially, she started as a 

paraeducator then went back to school to get her teaching certificate. 
Plan of Assistance The district will support Breanna with training, networking opportunities with 

her peers and tuition reimbursement.   
 



  Page 8 of 8 

 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒None ☒Personnel Expenditure 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends approval of the Personnel Action Items listed above. 



  

 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Garn Christensen, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Request for Travel for Staff 
 
DATE:  February 28, 2022 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
 
NAME OF ATTENDEE(S): 8 staff & up to 4 parents of migrant children  

TITLE, LOCATION & DATE OF 
CONFERENCE/WORKSHOP: 

National Migrant Education Conference in San 
Antonio, TX from April 7-10, 2022 

BUDGET SOURCE & COST: 
Registration and Meals/Miles/Lodging expenses 
are approx. $12,402 paid from Migrant Education 
Professional Development funds 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒None           ☒Noted above 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends the Board approve this out-of-state travel request for 
staff. 



 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Garn Christensen, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Requests for Surplus 
 
DATE:  February 28, 2022 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
Eastmont Technology Department request the attached list of items be declared as 
surplus. 
 
Eastmont Transportation Department request the attached list of items be declared as 
surplus. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒Lists ☒Revenue, if sold 
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends the Board authorize said property as surplus. 



 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Garn Christensen, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Field Trip Request – Eastmont High School FBLA to State Competition 
 
DATE:  February 28, 2022 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
Student field trips, which take students overnight and/or out-of-state, must have Board 
approval. 
 
Eastmont High School FBLA Advisor Mark Bloom is seeking the Board’s permission to 
take 15 students overnight to compete at the Washington FBLA State Competition in 
Spokane, WA.  The competition will take place April 20-23, 2022.  In addition to the high 
school students, there will be three staff chaperones in attendance.  The cost to students 
is $84 and students will have opportunities to do fundraisers to help defray or fully fund the 
cost of the trip.  All other costs will be paid from the EHS ASB and CTE program budgets.  
A copy of the request is enclosed. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒Field Trip Request ☒ASB and CTE Funds 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends approval of this overnight field trip request for Eastmont 
High School FBLA. 
 

































 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Garn Christensen, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Field Trip Request – Eastmont High School Music Department 
 
DATE:  February 28, 2022 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
Student field trips, which take students overnight and/or out-of-state, must have Board 
approval. 
 
Maggie Whiteman is seeking the Board’s permission to take approximately 105 Eastmont 
High School Music Department students to perform in the Music in the Parks Festival 
Competition at Silverwood in Anthol, Idaho.  This event will take place May 19-21, 2022.  
In addition to the high school students, there will be 2 staff chaperones and 16 parents in 
attendance.  The cost to students is $250 and students will have opportunities to do 
fundraisers to help defray or fully fund the cost of the trip.  The remaining costs will be 
paid from the EHS ASB and District travel budgets.  A copy of the request is enclosed. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒Field Trip Request Forms ☒ASB and District Travel Funds 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends approval of this overnight and out-of-state field trip 
request for Eastmont High School Music Department. 
 



















 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Garn Christensen, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: School Improvement Plan for Clovis Point Elementary School 
 
DATE:  February 28, 2022 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
Attached is the School Improvement Plan for Clovis Point Elementary School for your 
review. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒School Improvement Plan          ☒None          
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends approval of the School Improvement Plan for 
Clovis Point Elementary School. 
 



E Eastmont School District 
Relationships, Relevance, Rigor, Results 

Name of Team 

Member 

Amy Dorey 

Leigh Ann Strawn (3} 

April Winn (1} 

Lynn Reiman (K} 

Nancy Villa (2) 

Sarah Burnell (4} 

Brandi White (5) 

Michele Schwarz (6} 

Kari Stewart 

(Specialist} 

Christine Santiago 

Laine Heikel 

Rebecca Maloney 

Title 1 Part A - Schoolwide Plan 

2021-2022 

Planning Team 

Position/ 

Representation 

Principal 

Teacher, Chairperson 

Tei3cher, Secretary 

Teacher 

Teacher 

Teacher 

Teacher 

Teacher 

Teacher 

Para Educator 

Parent (non-staff} 

Parent (non-staff 

Mission/Vision Statement 

Under Development 

Culture of Equity Statement 

Under Development 

800 Eastmont Ave., East Wenatchee, WA 98802 

509-884-7169 N 509-884-4210 (fax) N www.eastmont206.org 

Page 1 

Clovis Point Elementary
Amy Dorey, Principal

2021-22



Clovis Point Elementary
Amy Dorey, Principal

2021-22



Clovis Point Elementary
Amy Dorey, Principal

2021-22



Clovis Point Elementary
Amy Dorey, Principal

2021-22



Clovis Point Elementary
Amy Dorey, Principal

2021-22



Clovis Point Elementary
Amy Dorey, Principal

2021-22



Clovis Point Elementary
Amy Dorey, Principal

2021-22



Clovis Point Elementary
Amy Dorey, Principal

2021-22



Clovis Point Elementary
Amy Dorey, Principal

2021-22



Clovis Point Elementary
Amy Dorey, Principal

2021-22



 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Garn Christensen, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Donation from the Lisson Family 
 
DATE:  February 28, 2022 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
Board Policy 6114 states that “Any gift or donation to the district or to an individual 
school or department of money, materials, or equipment having a value of $1,500 or 
greater shall be subject to board approval.” 
 
Eastmont High School Assistant Principal Stacia Hardie reports the Lisson Family would 
like to donate $5,000 to the High School’s Charitable Funds account.  These funds will 
be used to offset expenses for students (school activities participation or assistance with 
food or clothing, etc.) throughout the school year with administrative oversight. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒None          ☒Donation          
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends approval of this donation from the Lisson Family. 
 



 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Ami Collins, Assistant Director of Special Education- Early Learning 
  Spencer Taylor, Executive Director of Elementary Education 
 
SUBJECT: Rate Increases for Wee Wildcat/ Wee Cougars Preschools for 2022-2023 
 
DATE:  February 28, 2022 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
We have reviewed preschool programs in the valley and have made the 
recommendation to increase preschool rates to a uniform $7.00/hour.  We are 
committed to ensuring students receive a high-quality education in a well-researched 
integrated preschool model that offers a continuum of services in collaboration with 
Community Partners.  Our preschool tuition fees have not increased since 2018-2019.   

In keeping competitive with preschool rates in the Wenatchee Valley as well as 
increased program costs, please review and approve the rate recommendation below. 
Executive Director Caryn Metsker has reviewed the recommended rate increases and 
approves this recommendation. 

 

 Current Year   2021-2022 Upcoming Year  2022-2023 

Sessions Per 
Week 

Instructional 
Hours/Month 

Preschool 
Monthly Rates 

Instructional 
Hours/Month 

2022-2023 
Recommended 
Monthly Rates 

2 Days 16 $100 20  $140 

3 Days 30 $180 30 $210 

4 Days Not offered Not offered 40 $240 

 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒None ☒Preschool Program 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends the Board approve the rate increases for Wee Wildcats 
and Wee Cougars Preschools for the 2022-2023 school year.  



 

 

 

 

 To:  Board of Directors   

From:  Caryn Metsker, Executive Director of Financial Services 

Date:  February 18, 2022 

Subject: Monthly Budget Status Report – January 2022 

The information contained in this report is for the fiscal beginning September 1, 2021, 
through January 31, 2022.  A brief summary of key points in operating revenue and 
expenditures is provided below: 
 
 

• General Fund: 
o YTD Revenue: $34.5 million (36.9% of budget) 

▪ $1.4 million more than January 2021. 
▪ Property Tax Collections = $4.57 million 
▪ State & Federal Apportionment = $29 million 

 
o YTD Expenditures: $38.2 million (39.9% of budget).   

▪ $3.7 million more than January 2021 
▪ Labor costs make up most expenditures across all programs at 

approximately $33.2 million (87% of expenditures). 
 

o Fund balance is estimated to be $14 million at the end of the year. 
 
 

• ASB Fund:   

o YTD Revenues: $232,706  
▪ $203,000 more than January 2021. 

o YTD Expenditures: $117,354 
▪ $87,000 more than January 2021. 

o Fund Balance is $708,000. 
 
 

• Capital Projects Fund: 

o Elementary Additions and EHS Concessions Renovations:  
▪ Fiscal Year = $1,680,000 
▪ Total Project Costs (from beginning 2016) = $28.4 million 

 
 

• Transportation Fund: 

▪ Local revenue is less due to the decline in investment earnings. 

02.21.2022

Page 1 of 9



 
 

 

 

 

  

                 

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $35,000,000

 $40,000,000

TO
TA

L 
D

O
LL

A
R

S

Jan-18 Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21 Jan-22

Revenue $29,689,484 $33,860,628 $32,405,407 $33,102,350 $34,530,311

Expenditures $31,633,479 $33,072,906 $34,522,279 $34,518,383 $38,237,111

GENERAL FUND 
5 YEAR COMPARISON OF REVENUE & EXPD

02.21.2022

Page 2 of 9



 

 

 

$6
,7

2
2.

5
5

 

$
6,

00
3.

4
8

 

 $-

 $1,000

 $2,000

 $3,000

 $4,000

 $5,000

 $6,000

 $7,000

 $8,000

Certificated
Salaries

Classified
Salaries

Employee
Benefits

Supplies & Inst
Materials

Purchased
Services

Travel Capital Outlay Total
Expenditures

$

Expenditure Category

Monthly Comparison 
Per Pupil Expd Category 

Jan-22 Jan-21

02.21.2022

Page 3 of 9



 

 

 

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

 $8,000,000

TO
TA

L 
D

O
LL

A
R

S

Jan-18 Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21 Jan-22

Revenue $2,306,703 $775,185 $920,432 $7,050,031 $3,788,039

Expenditures $708,721 $696,492 $1,157,842 $7,684,904 $2,052,682

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
5 YEAR COMPARISON OF REVENUE & EXPD

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $9,000,000

TO
TA

L 
D

O
LL

A
R

S

Jan-18 Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21 Jan-22

Revenue $2,902,286 $3,638,149 $3,207,593 $8,663,380 $6,192,523

Expenditures $5,253,655 $3,926,948 $4,152,329 $3,701,187 $5,010,675

DEBT SERVICE FUND
5 YEAR COMPARISON OF REVENUE & EXPD

02.21.2022

Page 4 of 9



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 $-

 $50,000

 $100,000

 $150,000

 $200,000

 $250,000

 $300,000

 $350,000

To
ta

l D
o

lla
rs

Jan-18 Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21 Jan-22

Revenue $288,748 $304,531 $302,552 $29,207 $232,706

Expenditures $180,269 $170,654 $177,776 $29,518 $117,354

ASB FUND
5 YEAR COMPARISON OF REVENUE & EXPD

 $-

 $1,000

 $2,000

 $3,000

 $4,000

 $5,000

 $6,000

 $7,000

 $8,000

 $9,000

TO
TA

L 
D

O
LL

A
R

S

Jan-18 Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21 Jan-22

Revenue $5,138 $8,974 $8,155 $802 $416

Expenditures $- $- $- $- $-

TRANSPORTATION VEHICLE FUND
5 YEAR COMPARISON OF REVENUE & EXPD

02.21.2022

Page 5 of 9



The following Budget Status Report provides detailed revenue and expenditure information within the 
following column headings for each fund: 
 
 

Column Title Description 

Actual thru JAN 2021 The actual revenue & expenditure amounts posted in the 
financial records as of the same month in the previous year.  

Budget The original budget amount as adopted by the Board of Directors  

Actual thru JAN 2022 Includes revenues and expenditures posted in the financial 
records through the current period. 

Budget Remaining The difference between the Budget and the Actual amounts 
posted (revenues yet to be received; or expenditures yet to be 
paid) 

% of Budget The actual amounts posted as a percentage of the budget 
adopted 

Current Year to Prior 
Year Comparison 

Computation of the increase or decrease in 
revenue/expenditures as compared to the same month in the 
previous year. 

 

02.21.2022

Page 6 of 9



Budget Year
Elapsed = 41.6%

FY 2020-21
Current Year to 

Prior Year
Actual thru Actual thru Budget Actual

Jan-21 Budget Jan-22 Remaining % of Budget Comparison

GENERAL EXPENSE FUND
Revenues

1000 Local Taxes 4,448,031 10,799,830 4,570,042 6,229,788 42.3% 122,011
2000 Local Nontax 157,461 586,000 186,299 399,701 31.8% 28,838
3000 State, General Purpose 20,829,807 52,933,530 20,371,486 32,562,044 38.5% (458,322)
4000 State, Special Purpose 5,488,614 14,479,405 5,444,316 9,035,089 37.6% (44,298)
5000 Federal, General Purpose 0 2,000 0 2,000 0.0% 0
6000 Federal, Special Purpose 2,156,983 14,715,760 3,951,855 10,763,905 26.9% 1,794,872
7000 Revenues from Other School Districts 20,109 50,000 0 50,000 0.0% (20,109)
8000 Revenues from Other Agencies 1,345 100,000 0 100,000 n/a (1,345)
9000 Other Financing Sources 0 0 6,314 (6,314) n/a 6,314

Total Revenues $33,102,350 $93,666,525 $34,530,311 $59,136,214 36.9% $1,427,962

Expenditures
00 Regular Instruction 20,008,349 51,793,220 20,499,980 31,293,240 39.6% 491,631
10 Federal Stimulus 0 3,675,793 1,980,396 1,695,397 53.9% 1,980,396
20 Special Ed Instruction 3,927,411 10,301,033 4,339,364 5,961,669 42.1% 411,953
30 Vocational Instruction 1,393,556 4,020,374 1,533,212 2,487,162 38.1% 139,656

50/60 Compensatory Instruction 3,024,108 8,379,083 3,084,934 5,294,149 36.8% 60,826
70 Other Instructional Program 131,121 397,819 146,581 251,238 36.8% 15,461
80 Community Support 114,497 299,395 108,665 190,730 36.3% (5,832)
90 Support Services 5,919,342 16,967,963 6,543,979 10,423,984 38.6% 624,637

Total  Expenditures $34,518,383 $95,834,680 $38,237,111 $57,597,569 39.9% $3,718,728

  Operating Transfers: Out to CPF/TVF (537,250) (1,518,650) (1,518,650)

(1,953,284) (3,686,805) (5,225,450)

Fund Balance at September 1, $17,297,861 $15,030,795 $18,571,001

Current Total Fund Balance $15,344,578 $11,343,990 $13,345,551

Ending Fund Balance Accounts
GL 821 Carryover of Restricted Revenue $585,032 $544,438
GL 828 Food Service Program $0 $0
GL 840 Nonspendable Fund Balance $32,376 $43,623
GL 850  Restricted For Uninsured Risk $40,000 $40,000
GL 870  Unrsrvd, Dsgntd-Other Items $0 $0
GL 872 Committed to Min Fund Balance Policy $0 $0
GL 875 Assigned to Contingencies $50,000 $50,000
GL 888 Assigned to Other Purposes $5,352,807 $5,352,807
GL 891 Unassigned to Minimum Fund Balance $6,928,315 $6,928,315
GL 890  Unassigned Fund Balance $2,356,048 $386,368
TOTAL Ending Fund Balance $15,344,578 $13,345,551

Eastmont School District
Budget to Actual Comparison of Revenues and Expenditures

For the Period Ended January 31, 2022

FY 2021-22

Excess (Defecit) of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenditures

02.21.2022

Page 7 of 9

mailto:+I46-@sum(I49:I55)


Budget Year
Elapsed = 41.6%

FY 2020-21
Current Year to 

Prior Year
Actual thru Actual thru Budget Actual

Jan-21 Budget Jan-22 Remaining % of Budget Comparison

Eastmont School District
Budget to Actual Comparison of Revenues and Expenditures

For the Period Ended January 31, 2022

FY 2021-22

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Revenues
1000 Local Taxes 758,560 5,792,674 2,480,130 3,312,544 42.8% 1,721,571
2000 Local Nontax 70,935 59,000 39,259 19,741 66.5% (31,676)
4000 State, Special Purpose 5,908,286 1,000,000 0 1,000,000 0.0% (5,908,286)
8000 Revenues from Other Agencies 0 0 0 0 n/a 0
9000 Other Financing Sources 312,250 0 1,268,650 (1,268,650) n/a 956,400

Total Revenues $7,050,031 $6,851,674 $3,788,039 $3,063,635 55.3% ($3,261,992)

Expenditures
10 Sites 0 0 30,065 (30,065) #DIV/0! 30,065
20 Building 7,684,904 3,735,000 1,680,699 2,054,301 n/a (6,004,205)
30 Equipment 0 465,000 341,918 123,082 n/a 341,918
40 Energy 0 0 0 0 n/a 0
50 Sales & Lease Equipment 0 0 0 0 n/a 0
60 Bond Issuance Expenditure 0 0 0 0 n/a 0
90 Debt 0 0 0 0 n/a 0

      Total Expenditures $7,684,904 $4,200,000 $2,052,682 $2,147,318 48.9% ($5,632,223)

Operating Transfers: Out to DSF 312,250 4,628,650 4,628,650

Excess (Defecit) of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenditures (947,123) (708,326) (2,893,293)

$15,326,472 $3,068,350 $6,085,744

$14,379,349 $2,360,024 $3,192,451

FY 2020-21
Current Year to 

Prior Year
Actual thru Actual thru Budget Actual

Jan-21 Budget Jan-22 Remaining % of Budget Comparison

DEBT SERVICE FUND

Revenues
1000 Local Taxes 2,875,035 2,181,788 1,173,104 1,008,684 53.8% (1,701,931)
2000 Local Nontax 5,950 10,000 2,960 7,040 29.6% (2,990)
3000 State, General Purpose 0 0 0 0 n/a 0
4000 Federal, General Purpose 0 0 0 0 n/a 0
5000 Federal, Special Purpose 52,118 822,000 387,809 434,191 47.2% 335,691
9000 Other Financing Sources 5,730,277 4,628,650 4,628,650 0 100.0% (1,101,627)

Total Revenues $8,663,380 $7,642,438 $6,192,523 $1,449,915 81.0% ($2,470,857)

Expenditures
Matured Bond Expenditures 2,965,000 5,870,000 4,360,000 1,510,000 74.3% 1,395,000
Interest on Bonds 674,852 1,257,750 650,675 607,075 51.7% (24,177)
Interfund Loan Interest 0 0 0 0 n/a 0
Bond Transfer Fees 61,335 100,000 0 100,000 0.0% (61,335)
Arbitrage Rebate 0 0 0 0 n/a 0

      Total Expenditures $3,701,187 $7,227,750 $5,010,675 $3,566,990 69.3% $1,309,488

Other Financing Uses: (5,356,430) 0 0

(394,237) 414,688 1,181,848

$11,522,670 $11,115,000 $12,795,318

$11,128,432 $11,529,688 $13,977,166

Fund Balance at September 1

Current Total Fund Balance

Excess (Defecit) of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenditures

Fund Balance at September 1

Current Total Fund Balance

FY 2021-22

02.21.2022

Page 8 of 9



Budget Year
Elapsed = 41.6%

FY 2020-21
Current Year to 

Prior Year
Actual thru Actual thru Budget Actual

Jan-21 Budget Jan-22 Remaining % of Budget Comparison

Eastmont School District
Budget to Actual Comparison of Revenues and Expenditures

For the Period Ended January 31, 2022

FY 2021-22

ASSOCIATED STUDENT BODY FUND

Revenues
1000 General Student Body 18,420 220,500 108,046 112,454 49.0% 89,626
2000 Athletics 584 147,180 90,618 56,562 61.6% 90,034
3000 Classes 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
4000 Clubs 1,110 270,550 21,713 248,837 8.0% 20,603
6000 Private Moneys 9,093 22,100 12,329 9,771 55.8% 3,236

Total Revenues $29,207 $660,330 $232,706 $427,624 35.2% $203,499

Expenditures
1000 General Student Body 21,217 211,100 61,225 149,875 29.0% 40,008
2000 Athletics 3,620 157,956 38,197 119,759 24.2% 34,578
3000 Classes 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
4000 Clubs 883 258,050 11,654 246,396 4.5% 10,771
6000 Private Moneys 3,798 18,700 6,277 12,423 33.6% 2,479

      Total Expenditures $29,518 $645,806 $117,354 $528,452 18.2% $87,835

(311) 14,524 115,353

$569,639 $480,858 $585,394

$569,328 $495,382 $700,747

Ending Fund Balance by School:
Eastmont High School $381,763 $477,255
Eastmont Junior High $135,365 $152,842

Clovis Point Intermediate $19,269 $24,057
Sterling Intermdiate $20,285 $28,812

Grant Elementary $2,072 $3,483
Lee Elementary $4,730 $6,211

Kenroy Elementary $4,846 $6,343
Rock Island Elementary $998 $1,743

$569,328 $700,747

FY 2020-21
Current Year to 

Prior Year
Actual thru Actual thru Budget Actual

Jan-21 Budget Jan-22 Remaining % of Budget Comparison

TRANSPORTATION VEHICLE FUND

Revenues
1000 Local Taxes 0 0 0 0 n/a 0
2000 Local Nontax 802 1,000 416 584 41.6% (386)
3000 State, General Purpose 0 0 0 0 n/a 0
4000 State, Special Purpose 0 250,000 0 250,000 0.0% 0
5000 Federal, General Purpose 0 0 0 0 n/a 0
8000 Revenues fr Other Agencies 0 0 0 0 n/a 0
9000 Other Financing Sources 0 0 0 0 n/a 0

  Total Revenues $802 $251,000 $416 $250,584 0.2% ($386)
Expenditures

Program 99  PUPIL TRANSPORTATION
  Type 30 - Equipment 0 835,000 0 835,000 0.0% 0
  Type 60 - Bond Levy Issurance 0 0 0 0 n/a 0
  Type 90 - Debt 0 0 0 0 n/a 0

Total Expenditures $0 $835,000 $0 $835,000 0.0% $0

Operating Transfers:
  In From General Fund 225,000 250,000 250,000
  Out to Debt Service Fund 0 0

225,802 (334,000) 250,416

$986,004 $988,800 $1,052,190

$1,211,806 $654,800 $1,302,606

FY 2021-22

Excess (Defecit) of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenditures

Fund Balance at September 1

Current Total Fund Balance

Excess (Defecit) of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenditures

Fund Balance at September 1

Current Total Fund Balance

02.21.2022

Page 9 of 9



 
 
 

To:  Board of Directors   

From:  Caryn Metsker, Executive Director of Financial Services 

Date:  February 14, 2022 

Subject: Monthly Student Enrollment Report 

Student full time equivalent (FTE) enrollment data is used in a variety of funding formulas that 
allocate resources to school districts.  Districts are therefore required to report their enrollment data 
to OSPI as of the fourth school day of September and the first school day of October through June 
(WAC 392-121-119).  OSPI requires Form P223 be used for this purpose.  
 
Headcount and Actual FTE Reported: 
Total student headcount reported, including Alternative Learning Enrollment enrolled in Eastmont 
Virtual Academy (ALE) program, is 5,768.  We are reporting 39 students less than what we reported 
in February 2021 (5,807).  
 
Total student FTE reported, including ALE, is 5,654. This is a decrease of 77 FTE from the total FTE 
reported in February 2021 (5,731) and a decrease of 55 FTE from the actual average FTE (AAFTE) 
reported for the 2020-2021 school year. 
 
A comparison of reported program enrollment for other programs is below: 
 

 
 

Budget to Actual FTE Analysis: 
Budgeted K-12 FTE, including ALE program is 5,695.  Actual average FTE is 13.13  less than the 
estimated used for budget development.   

• K-12 student enrollment is 5,473 FTE, which is 47 FTE more than expected.   
• ALE program enrollment is 210 FTE and 60 FTE less than expected. 

 
The following additional information is presented for your review: 

• A graph that compares the five prior February count dates to February 2022 & reflects our 
new school grade configurations. 

• A graph that compares February 2022 and February 2021 FTE to budget by grade level  
• A report that provides detail of enrollment, by building and grade level for all months.  

02/20/2022

1 of 4



 
 

 

2,852 2,737 
3,227 3,235 3,329 

1,451 1,461 

1,451 1,425 1,395 

1,123 1,034 

1,117 1,150 1,104 
228 498 

138 102 95 

F E B - 2 2F E B - 2 1F E B - 2 0F E B - 1 9F E B - 1 8

ST
UD

EN
T 

EN
RO

LL
ED

 FT
E

COUNT MONTH

K-12 STUDENT FTE
5 YEAR TREND BY GRADE SPAN

Grade K-6 Grade 7-9 Grade 10-12 ALE

374 
356 

428 
396 392 

467 
440 

459 

537 

456 
483 

335 
305 

 -

 100

 200

 300

 400

 500

 600

K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

ST
U

DE
N

T F
TE

GRADE LEVEL

K-12 Student FTE Comparison-Excludes ALE enrollment

Feb-21 FY 21-22 ESTIMATE FOR BUDGET Feb-22

02/20/2022

2 of 4



Eastmont School District
FY 2021-2022 K-12 Monthly Enrollment FTE by Grade Level 
(Includes ALE Program FTE; Excludes CTE & Running Start FTE)

2/1/2022

 AAFTE for Budget 5,695      

FY 2020-2021 Actual AATFE 5,736.81 

Grade
2021-22 FTE 
for Budget Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb

Annual 
Average FTE

AAFTE 
Increase / 
Decrease 

from Buget 
Est.

AAFFTE 
% 

variance 
from 

Budget

Prior 
Year 

AAFTE

Variance 
from 
Prior 
Year 

AAFTE
K 338                  372.68    374.54       373.54    375.72    372.72    373.56    373.79             35.79         10.59% 317.02    56.77      
1 339                  371.54    366.02       365.55    363.37    359.37    355.84    363.62             24.62         7.26% 391.16    (27.54)     
2 418                  428.00    428.00       430.00    426.09    426.14    428.14    427.73             9.73           2.33% 375.91    51.82      
3 407                  408.00    406.00       405.00    402.00    398.00    396.00    402.50             (4.50)          -1.11% 376.62    25.88      
4 402                  402.00    401.52       397.52    396.61    396.61    391.61    397.65             (4.35)          -1.08% 443.30    (45.66)     
5 468                  468.00    466.08       469.08    466.00    465.00    467.00    466.86             (0.98)          -0.21% 407.58    59.28      
6 431                  441.00    440.00       437.00    440.00    442.00    440.00    440.00             9.00           2.09% 438.77    1.23        
7 452                  466.74    464.74       459.57    457.57    457.57    458.57    460.79             8.79           1.95% 504.00    (43.21)     
8 518                  531.74    533.30       536.47    534.56    536.87    536.87    534.97             16.97         3.28% 463.20    71.77      
9 466                  472.95    469.95       462.45    456.20    453.56    455.65    461.79             (4.21)          -0.90% 491.73    (29.93)     

10 493                  509.63    505.97       496.26    494.00    489.28    483.09    496.37             3.37           0.68% 432.77    63.60      
11 390                  346.94    340.70       339.13    337.98    337.26    334.86    339.48             (50.77)        -13.01% 327.20    12.28      
12 303                  304.78    305.64       309.52    310.05    307.55    304.71    307.04             3.74           1.23% 288.40    18.65      

Total K-12 Building FTE 
(Excludes ALE) 5,425               5,524.00 5,502.46    5,481.09 5,460.15 5,441.93 5,425.90 5,472.59          47.20         0.87% 5,257.64 214.95    

Eastmont Academy (ALE 
Program) 115                  58.45      65.45         65.62      61.70      58.34      62.34      61.98               (53.02)        299.30    (237.32)   

EHS Opportunities (ALE 
Program) 155                  120.26    148.08       143.75    149.73    158.44    165.86    147.69             (7.31)          179.87    

Total K-12 Enrollment 
Reported to OSPI 5,695               5,702.71 5,715.99    5,690.46 5,671.58 5,658.71 5,654.10 5,682.26          (13.13)        5,736.81 (22.37)     

Over/(Under) Budget (13.13)              

Over/(Under) Prior Year 
Actual AAFTE (54.55)              

Net Change from Prior 
Month Reporting (4.61)               

Total ALE K-12
Change from September 

Reporting (48.61)             49.49      (98.10)       -0.9%

Total Enrollment Growth 
from Prior Year -0.95%

Count Date:

02/20/2022

3 of 4



Eastmont School District

Building/Grade

FY 2021-2022 
BUDGET 
AAFTE Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb

Annual 
Average

Monthly 
Change

AAFTE 
Budget to 

Actual 
Variance

AAFTE % 
Variance 

from 
Budget

Prior 
Year 

AAFTE

AAFTE 
Variance 

from 
Prior 
Year

Cascade
K 58                    77.0                   83.00      82.00           85.09           84.09           83.7             82.5                   3.1              24.5             80.2         2.3           
1 58                    73.5                   74.54 75.54           74.54           74.54           73.6             74.4                   (1.0)             16.4             94.9         (20.5)       
2 72                    86.0                   89.00      90.00           88.00           88.00           89.0             88.3                   (2.0)             16.3             85.3         3.0           
3 74                    80.00                 80.00      78.00           78.00           79.00           80.0             79.2                   -              5.2               86.9         (7.8)          
4 77                    90.00                 92.00      91.00           90.00           91.00           90.0             90.7                   (1.0)             13.7             112.5      (21.8)       
5 83                    100.00              100.08    100.08         100.00         100.00         99.0             99.9                   (0.1)             16.9             -           99.9         
6 #DIV/0! -              

Total 422                  506.54              518.62    516.62         515.63         516.63         515.27         514.9                 (1.0)             92.9             22.01% 459.8      55.1         

Clovis
K 58                    58.00                 57.18      55.18           57.18 55.18           55.2             56.3                   2.0              (1.7)              
1 73                    67.00                 63.18      62.18           63.18 60.18           60.2             62.7                   1.0              (10.4)           
2 71                    60.00                 60.00      59.00           60.00 58.00           58.0             59.2                   1.0              (11.8)           
3 58                    69.00                 67.00      68.00           67.00 63.00           62.0             66.0                   (1.0)             8.0               
4 70                    63.00                 61.52      61.52           61.52 61.52           62.5             61.9                   -              (8.1)              
5 78                    76.00                 74.00      75.00           74.00 75.00           74.0             74.7                   (1.0)             (3.3)              
6 221                  201.00              202.00    201.00         202.00 202.00         199.0           201.2                 1.0              (19.8)           

Total 629                  594.00              584.88    581.88         584.88         574.88         570.88         581.9                 3.0              (47.1)           -7.49% 666.9      (85.0)       

Grant
K 58                    63.00                 65.00      65.00           66.1             66.09           67.00 65.4                   1.1              7.4               79.4         (14.0)       
1 62                    69.00                 67.00      66.00           64.0             64.00           63.00 65.5                   (2.0)             3.5               84.8         (19.3)       
2 75                    75.00                 73.00      74.00           72.1             72.09           73.09 73.2                   (1.9)             (1.8)              84.7         (11.5)       
3 69                    62.00                 61.00      61.00           61.0             61.00           60.00 61.0                   -              (8.0)              82.3         (21.3)       
4 70                    64.00                 61.00      59.00           61.0             60.00           58.0             60.5                   2.0              (9.5)              105.7      (45.2)       
5 85                    83.00                 83.00      83.00           82.0             81.00           82.0             82.3                   (1.0)             (2.7)              -           82.3         
6 #DIV/0! -              

Total 419                  416.00              410.00    408.00         406.18         404.18         403.09         407.9                 (1.8)             (11.1)           -2.65% 436.9      (29.0)       

Kenroy
K 58                    63.68                 61.36      63.36           62.4             62.36           61.7             62.5                   (1.0)             4.5               76.8         (14.4)       
1 68                    70.00                 69.47      71.00           70.2             70.18           68.2             69.8                   (0.8)             1.8               83.6         (13.8)       
2 75                    86.00                 86.00      87.00           86.0             88.05           87.1             86.7                   (1.0)             11.7             84.1         2.6           
3 79                    90.00                 90.00      90.00           87.0             87.00           87.0             88.5                   (3.0)             9.5               86.4         2.1           
4 70                    74.00                 74.00      74.00           73.1             73.09           72.1             73.4                   (0.9)             3.4               97.3         (23.9)       
5 85                    85.00                 86.00      87.00           87.0             87.00           88.0             86.7                   -              1.7               -           86.7         
6 -                     -                     -              

Total 435                  468.68              466.83    472.36         465.63         467.68         464.02         467.5                 (6.7)             32.5             7.48% 428.2      (47.4)       

Lee
K 58                    74.00                 70.00      70.00           69.0             69.00           70.0             70.3                   (1.0)             12.3             49.7         20.6         
1 48                    59.00                 58.47      58.47           58.5             57.47           59.5             58.6                   -              10.6             81.8         (23.2)       
2 79                    79.00                 78.00      78.00           78.0             78.00           78.0             78.2                   -              (0.8)              84.8         (6.6)          
3 78                    73.00                 73.00      74.00           74.0             73.00           72.0             73.2                   -              (4.8)              86.6         (13.4)       
4 70                    71.00                 72.00      72.00           72.0             72.00           70.0             71.5                   -              1.5               87.8         (16.3)       
5 89                    83.00                 83.00      84.00           83.0             82.00           83.0             83.0                   (1.0)             (5.8)              -           83.0         
6 -                     -                     -              

Total 422                  439.00              434.47    436.47         434.47         431.47         432.53         434.7                 (2.0)             12.9             3.06% 390.7      (39.0)       

Rock Island
K 48                    37.00                 38.00      38.00           36.0             36.00           36.00 36.8                   (2.0)             (11.2)           30.9         5.9           
1 30                    33.00                 33.36      32.36           33.0             33.00           31.36 32.7                   0.6              2.7               46.1         (13.4)       
2 46                    42.00                 42.00      42.00           42.0             42.00           43.00 42.2                   -              (3.8)              37.0         5.2           
3 49                    34.00                 35.00      34.00           35.0             35.00           35.00 34.7                   1.0              (14.3)           34.4         0.3           
4 45                    40.00                 41.00      40.00           39.0             39.00           39.00 39.7                   (1.0)             (5.3)              39.0         0.7           
5 48                    40.00                 39.00      39.00           39.0             39.00           40.00 39.3                   -              (8.7)              -           39.3         
6 #DIV/0! -              

Total 266                  226.00              228.36    225.36         224.00         224.00         224.36         225.3                 (1.4)             (40.7)           -15.28% 187.4      37.9         

EJHS
6 -                   1.00                   1.00         1.00             1.00             1.00             0.00 0.8                     -              0.8               0.8           
7 230                  234.00              232.00    228.00         228.00         227.00         225.00 229.0                 -              (1.0)              0.6           228.4      
8 268                  285.74              285.74    286.74         281.81         285.62         283.6           284.9                 (4.9)             16.9             463.2      (178.3)     
9 466                  470.95              467.95    460.45         454.20         451.56         453.7           459.8                 (6.3)             (6.2)              490.7      (30.9)       

10 -                   #DIV/0! -              #DIV/0! 1.0           #DIV/0!
11 -                   #DIV/0! -              #DIV/0! 4.0           #DIV/0!
12 -                   1.00                   1.00         1.00             1.00             1.00             1.0                1.0                     -              1.0           -           

Total 964                  992.69              987.69    977.19         966.01         966.18         963.27         975.5                 (11.2)          10.5             1.09% 960.5      20.0         

Sterling JH
5 -                   1.00                   1.00         1.00             1.00             1.00             1.00             1.0                     -              1.0               
6 210                  239.00              237.00    235.00         237.00         239.00         241.00         238.0                 2.0              28.0             
7 222                  232.74              232.74    231.57         229.57         230.57         233.57         231.8                 (2.0)             9.8               
8 250                  246.00              247.56    249.73         252.75         251.25         253.25         250.1                 3.0              0.1               
9 -                   1.00                   1.00         1.00             1.00             1.00             1.00             1.0                     -              1.0               

10 -                   -                     -                     -              -               
11 -                   -                     -                     -              -               
12 -                   -                     -                     -              -               

Total 682                  719.74              719.30    718.30         721.32         722.82         729.82         721.9                 3.0              10.9             1.60% 683.85    38.03      

EHS
8 -                   -                     -                     -              -           -           
9 -                   1.00                   1.00         1.00             1.00             1.00             1.00             1.0                     -              1.0               1.0           -           

10 493                  509.63              505.97    496.26         494.00         489.28         483.09         496.4                 (2.3)             3.7               431.8      64.6         
11 390                  346.94              340.70    339.13         337.98         337.26         334.86         339.5                 (1.1)             (50.8)           323.2      16.3         
12 303                  303.78              304.64    308.52         309.05         306.55         303.71         306.0                 0.5              2.7               287.4      18.6         

Total 1,186              1,161.35           1,152.31 1,144.91      1,142.03      1,134.09      1,122.66      1,142.9             (2.9)             (43.3)           -3.65% 1,043.4   99.5         
17.5             

Eastmont Academy (ALE)
K 10                    5.00                   2.00         2.00             3.0                5.00             5.00 3.7                     1.0              (6.3)              35.0         (31.3)       
1 10                    6.00                   6.00         6.00             6.0                7.00             6.00 6.2                     -              (3.8)              40.4         (34.2)       
2 10                    12.00                 12.00      10.00           10.0             8.95             8.95 10.3                   -              0.3               39.9         (29.6)       
3 10                    4.00                   5.00         5.00             6.0                6.00             6.00 5.3                     1.0              (4.7)              31.3         (26.0)       
4 5                      5.00                   5.00         5.00             5.0                5.00             5.00 5.0                     -              -               33.5         (28.5)       
5 10                    7.00                   8.00         8.00             6.0                5.00             6.00 6.7                     (2.0)             (3.3)              30.7         (24.0)       
6 10                    5.00                   9.00         11.00           9.0                6.00             6.00 7.7                     (2.0)             (2.3)              33.1         (25.4)       
7 20                    5.83                   7.83         8.00             6.0                5.00             8.00 6.8                     (2.0)             (13.2)           36.0         (29.2)       
8 30                    8.62                   10.62      10.62           10.7             10.39           11.39 10.4                   0.1              (19.6)           19.4         (9.0)          

Total 115                  58.45                 65.45      65.62           61.70           58.34           62.34           62.0                   (3.9)             (33.4)           -29.05% 299.3      (237.3)     

EHS Opportunites (ALE)
-                   -                     -                     -              -               -           

9 30                    13.35                 17.35      22.30           24.44           26.89           30.80           22.5                   2.1              (7.5)              30.9         (8.4)          
10 20                    14.46                 19.12      21.29           28.49           30.57           35.76           24.9                   7.2              4.9               26.6         (1.6)          
11 30                    31.41                 40.31      40.41           41.19           44.73           43.44 40.2                   0.8              10.2             45.7         (5.5)          
12 75                    61.04                 71.30      59.75           55.61           56.25           55.86           60.0                   (4.1)             (15.0)           76.7         (16.7)       

Total 155                  120.26              148.08    143.75         149.73         158.44         165.86         147.7                 6.0              (7.3)              -4.72% 179.9      (32.2)       

Total Monthly Variance (18.88)        10.2             5,736.81 

K-6 Total 2,593              2,650.22           2,643.16 2,640.69      2,630.79      2,618.84      2,610.15      2,632.3             
K-12 Total 5,695              5,702.71           5,715.99 5,690.46      5,671.58      5,658.71      5,654.10      5,682.3             

Report 1251 5,702.71           5,715.99 5,690.46      5,671.58      5,658.71      5,654.10      5,682.26           
difference -                     -           -               -               -               -               -                     

FY2021-2022 Monthly Enrollment FTE by Building

Month

02/20/2022

4 of 4



Eastmont School District #206   Relationships, Relevance, Rigor, and Results 
Special Education Report for 2021-2022 

 

2/28/2022;  Prepared and Presented by Sarah Lewman, Special Education Director and Candis Coble & Ami Collins, 
Assistant Directors.   

Students and Staff  
Student Information Staff Information 

Years 
Birth - 3 
yr. olds 

3-5  
yr. olds 

6-21  
yr. olds 

Home/ 
Alt. Ed FTE Admin Cert Class Office 

Dec 2018 31 63 675 1 97.32 2.0 46.85 46.77 1.7 
Dec 2019 29 78 694 1 96.67 1.8 46.85 46.77 1.25 
UPDATED 
REPORTING 
GUIDANCE (20/21) 

3-5 yr. old 
(Not in 
Kinder)  

Tier 1  
(80-100%) 

Tier 2 
(Other) 

Total 
SPED      

Dec 2020 74 484 181 739 97.19 1.0 46.85 48.14 1.2 
Dec 2021 55 453 199 707 119.05 2.0 48.42 67.13 1.5 

 
 
Allocated Revenues & Expenditures  (This includes both Federal and State allocations from last year.) 
Total Revenue: $ 8,643,347    Total Expenditures: $ 9,334,672 
Program Expenditures Exceeded Revenue: $ 691,325 
 
2022-2023 Departmental Initiatives and Areas of Focus 
● Inclusion Work – Kenroy and Grant Elementary are still working with the Inclusionary Practices Mini Grants 

through the ESD and Clovis Elementary is working with the University of Washington. Two Inclusion 
Specialist positions will be added at the junior high levels to maintain and improve the Least Restrictive 
Environment (LRE) for our students.  

● Behavior & additional Life Skills programs at Clovis Point Elementary - Fall of 2022 and overseen by 
Candis Coble, our Special Education Assistant Director of Behavior and Life Skills.  

● Secondary Transition - Stemilt and Project Search will begin it’s planning phase this Spring. Our district 
was selected to complete a self-assessment in the area of Secondary Transition. A guidance committee 
including families, community members, staff, and administration (from all areas of academic focus) have 
been meeting to review and score our district's strengths and areas of improvement. Post-assessment 
evaluation will be followed by an action plan of how we can strengthen our transition services.  

● Community Partnerships with ECEAP and Head Start - Ami Collins is our new Special Education Assistant 
Director of Early Learning. Her leadership and guidance have made this work possible.  

● Recovery - This ongoing process will span two to three years. Designed to address learning loss that 
occurred as a result of the pandemic.  

 
District Goal/Strategy/Activity Progress to Date/Available Data 
(3000 A2)  Decrease out of school suspensions Implementation of the Behavior Program at Clovis 

Elementary.  
(4000 B3)  Recognize Eastmont’s website as 
primary communication avenue for our parents Special Education website links are up to date. 

(4000 B5)  Invite younger parents and employees to 
assist with visioning and goal setting to ensure 
District meets emerging parent and employee 
expectations 

Parent information nights in cooperation with 
Wenatchee School District related to transition 
services. Participation in Washington Integrated 
System Management (WISM) Self Assessment. 

(6000 B6)  Maximize Federal Grants Compliance with IEP Online allows for future grant 
opportunities.    

(6000 B7)  Working within Federal/State 
Regulations  

Chosen for a WISM Self Assessment of our 
secondary transition program this year. 

(6000 B10)  Special Education Expenditures Medicaid implementation was successful.  
Safety Net claim in progress.  

 


	Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Recognition
	Building Report
	January 24, 2022 Minutes
	February 7, 2022 Minutes
	February 15 & 17, 2022 Minutes
	February 22 & 23, 2022 Minutes
	Personnel Action Items
	Out-of-Endorsement Waiver Requests
	Request for Travel
	Requests for Surplus
	Field Trip-FBLA
	Field Trip-EHS Music
	School Improvement Plan
	Donation
	Wee Wildcat/Wee Cougars
	Budget Status Report
	Enrollment Report
	Special Education Report



